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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of SBI Payment Services Private Limited
Report on the Financial Statements
Opinion :
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SBI Payment Services Private Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Lopss, the
Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (*Ind AS™) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2020, its profit, thanges
in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial staements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with re pect to
the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other ac unting
principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going ¢concern
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operatjons, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our @pinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional Jjudgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to

fraud or

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidende that is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve ¢
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

material

ollusion,

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

are also

controls

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may

material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related di
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our concl
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future e
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conc]ule that a

closures
ions are

vents or

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial stater.ients represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope an
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevan
requirements regarding indeperidence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

d timing

identify

t ethical

hat may

The Comparative Financial Statements of the company for the year ended March 31, 2019 and transition date

opening balance sheet as at 1% April, 2018 prepared in accordance with Ind AS included in these Ind AS

statements have been audited by predecessor auditor M/s. Jacob Koshy & Co, Chartered Accountants, |
audited the financial statements for the relevant periods. The report of the predecessor auditor on the con

financial information and the opening balance sheet dated May 17, 2019 expressed an unmodified opinion.
Our opinion on the financial statements is not modified in respect of this mater.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

financial
who had

parative

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of

India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A", a statement on the

Specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:
a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations
were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

2 matters

nd belief
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b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from
our examination of those books.

¢) the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, the statement of changes in equity and Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act,
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014.

e) on the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020, and taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020, from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”:

2) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended '

The Company is the Private Limited Company, thus provisions of section 197 is not applicable to the company.

h) With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the C mpanies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, we report as under;

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

il.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material forceable losses.

iii.  There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year under report to transfer any sums to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund. The question of delay in transferring such sums does not arise.

As required by section 143(5) of the Act, we report that we have complied with the direction issued by Comptroller
and Auditor General of India and our replies in respect of these directions are given in “Annexure C” |attached
herewith.

ForKPMR & CO
FRN : 104497W
Chartered Accountants

giler

SANDEEP P RAJGOR
Partner
M.No.122739
Place : Mumbai
Date : May 8, 2020
UDIN : 20122739AAAAAX9250
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vi.

vii.

viii.

Xi.

“Annexure A” to Independent Auditors’ Report
Annexure referred to in paragraph 6 Our Report of even date to the members of SBI Payment Services
Private Limited on the Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2020

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to
us during the course of our audit, we report that:

In respect of fixed assets;

a) The company has generally maintained records showing full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

b) It has been explained to us that the Company has a regular program for verification of all fixed assets in a
phased manner, which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature
of its assets. No material discrepancies were notied no such verification.

¢)  The company does not have any immovable property and as such reporting under this para of the order is not
applicable.

The company is a service company and it does not carry any inventories. Accordingly, reporting under| clause 3
(ii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to any companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act.

The Company has complied with the rrovisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013, with respect
to the loans and investments made as applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public covered under Section 73 to 76 of the Companies
Act, 2013. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under section 148(]1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company. Thus reporting under clausé 3(vi) of
the order is not applicable to the Company

In respect of statutory dues;

a) The company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Eniployees’
State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other material statutpry dues,
as applicable, with the appropriate authorities in India. There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of Provident Fund, Employees” State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess
and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2020 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

b) There are no dues of Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Sales Tax, Customs Duty and Excise Duty

which have not been deposited on account of any disputes.

The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from financial institutions, banks and government or has not
issued any debentures. Hence reporting under clause 3 (viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

viMrRe

We have neither come across any instance of fraud by the Company or o
employees, noticed or reported during the course of our audit nor have we
the Management.

any by its officials or
any such instance by

The Company is the Private Limited Company, thus provisions of secti the conipany.
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Xii. ~ The Company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii.  The transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where plicable
and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the :Ep]icab]e
accounting standards.

Xiv.  The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly canvertible
debentures during the year.

Xv.  The Company has not entered intc non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
Accordingly, para 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

xvi.  The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934

ForKPMR & CO
FRN : 104497W
Chartered Accountants

Qe

—

Partner
M.No.122739
Place : Mumbai
Date : May 8, 2020
UDIN : 20122739AAAAAX9250
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“Annexure B” (o the Auditors’ Repnrf

Annexure referred to in paragraph 7 (f) of Our Report of even date to the members of SBI Payment|Services
Private Limited on the Financial Statement for the year ended 31* March 2020.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SBI Payment Services Private Limited

(“the Company™) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Com pany for
the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and crrors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial (Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Qhartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial contfols over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material re pects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial contfols over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial r porting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operati ng effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, incl ding the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and dir o company; and (3) provide
eQsade n of the
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaiuation of the internal financial controls over financial reporti ngto future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion s
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls syst
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as ¢
31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company consids
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Contr
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

ForKPMR & CO
FRN : 104497W
Chartered Accountants

("'
SANDEEP P RAJGOR
Partner
M.No.122739
Place : Mumbai

Date : May 8, 2020
UDIN : 20122739AAAAAX9250
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“Annexure C” to the Auditors’ Report

Annexure referred to in paragraph 8 of Our Report of even date to the members of SBI Payment |Services

Private Limited on the Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Directions under section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013

1. Whether the company has system in place to process all the accounting transactions through IT system ? If

yes, the implications of processing of accounting transactions outside IT system on the integrity of th
accounts along with the financial implications, if any may be stated.

All Accounting transactions are processed through IT System (Tally ERP). The back office ope
of the various financial transactions have been carried out at the Global Information Technolo

Centre of State Bank of India (SBI) at Nerul, Mumbai. The Integrity of their IT System is has
authenticated by SBIL

25

rations

y
een

Whether there is any restructuring of an exisiting loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest etc

made by a lender to the company due to Company’s inability to repay loans ? If yes, the financial impact

may be stated.
Not Applicable

3. Whether funds received/receivable for specific schemes from central / state agencies were properlt ac
for / utilized as per its terms and conditions ? List the cases of deviation.

Not Applicable
ForKPMR & CO
FRN : 104497W

Chartered Accountants

q.:far*

SANDEEP P RAJGOR
Partner
M.Nb.122739
Place : Mumbai
Date : May 8, 2020
UDIN : 20122739AAAAAX9250
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SBI Payment Services Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars

Notes As at As at As at
31st March 2020 31st March 2019 1st April 2018
ASSETS
1 |Non-current assets
a) Property, plant and equipment 2 1,31,89,01, 462 1,11,22,53,352 -
b) Other Intangible assets 3 8.51.611 : 3
¢) Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 4 20.56,000 5,40,000 -
d) Deferred tay asset (net) 5 - 5.01,32,864 -
€) Income Tax Assets (Net) 1,79.69,90,819 26,88,92,688 26214076
(A) 3,11,865,99,893 1.43|1811B|904 2,62,14,076
2 |Current assets
a) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 6 99,43,39,034 37,38,94,121 2,21,25909
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 7 10,32,75,853 2,60,75,17,135 409121
(iii) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 8 1.42,97.81,075 11,000 22752
(iv) Other financial assets 9 32,19,254 32,30,970 -
b) Other current assets 10 37,13.12,364 42,57,65,020 3,00.000
(B) 2,90,19,27,680 3,41,04,18,246 2,28,57,782
TOTAL (A+B) 6,02,05,27,473 4,84,22 37,150 4,90,71,858
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 |Equity
(a) Equity share capital 1" 6.08,10,820 6,08,10,820 2,00,00,000
(b) Other equity 12 4,52.61,87.655 4.03,96,07.437 1,80,32473
(A) 4,58,69,98,476 4,10,04,18,257 3,80,32,473
2 |Non-current llabilities
(a) Provisions | 13 21,23,599 9,08,277 -
21,23,599 9,08,277 -
3 |Current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables 14
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
Total putstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 1,15,91,70,345 73,92,51,644 88,11/967
small enterprises
(i) Other financial liabilities 15 4548174 11,67.672 16,086,559
b) Other current liabilities 16 26,74,95,070 446,220 6,20/859
¢) Provisions | G 7 1,891,810 45,080 -
(B) 1Iﬂ|14|0§|399 74,09,10,616 1,10,39,385
TOTAL (A+8) _6.02,06.27473 484,22.37,160 _4,90,71185%
Notes form an integral part of these financial statements 11034

This is the balance sheet referred to in our report of even date

ForKPMR&CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 104497W

S

Partner
Membership No: 122739

Place: Mumbai
Date: 08 May 2020

For SBI Payment Services Private Limited

Ram Naray
MD & CEO
DIN: 07

Boga

168

R
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: 08 May 2020

Sumil Vikamsey
Director
DIN: 08323257
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Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer




OBl Payment Services Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31st March 2020

(Amount in Rs.)
Particulars Note no. For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Reven_ue from operations 18 13.30,04,08,563 5,34,15,02,362
Other income 19 12,55,59,861 3,68,70,581
Total Income 13,42,59,68,424 5,37,83,72,943
Employee Benefit Expenses 20 7.84,78,227 2,73,43,269
Depreciation and Amertization expense 21 69,14,08,036 28,6162,276
Other expenses 22 12,11,92,24 870 5,20,90,69,605
Total Expenses 12,88,91,11,133 5,52,25,75,149
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 53,68,57,291 (14,42,02,207)
Tax expense:
(a) Current tax ( Includes income tax reversal of earlier years of Rs. 94,646/-) - (94.646)
(b) Deferred tax 5 5,01,39,392 (5.01.89,392)
Profit/(Loss) after tax 48,67,17,899 (9,39,68,169)
Other comprehensive income

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss 1.44,209 8,684

Remesurment profit/(Loss) on define benefit plan

(i) Income Tax Effect 6.528 (6.528)
Total other comprehensive incomel(loss) for the year 1,37,681 12,156
Total comprehensive incomel(loss) for the year 48,65,80,218 (9,39,56,013)
Basic and diluted earnings per share

Basic earnings / (loss) per share 80.04 23.87)

Diluted earnings / (loss) per share 80.04 23.87)
Notes form an integral part of these financial statements 1to 34

This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date

ForKPMR & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 104497W

sangep f.dilor

Partner
Membership No: 122738

Place: Mumbai
Date: 08 May 2020

For SBI Payment Services Private L

DIN: 07642168

nha
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: 08 May 2020

Sumil Vikamsey
Director
: 08323257

ol
Ekta Dhruva

Company Secretany &
Compliance Office




SBI Payment Services Private Limited
Statement of cash flow for the year ended 31st March, 2020

(Amount in Rs))
Particulars Year ended Year ended

| 5 =% 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit | (Loss) before tax 53,68,57,291 (14,42,02,207)
Adjustments for:
Provision no longer required (3,94 93,740) -
Interest income on fixed deposits (8,45,58,251) (2,98,95,835)
Interest income on income tax refund (15.07.870) (6.00.470)
Gain od;| disposal of property, plant and equipment - (63,74,278)
Amortisation of intangible assets 48,389 -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 69,13,59,647 28,61,62,27
Operating profit / (loss) before Working Capital Changes 1,10,27,05,466 10,50,89,48
Movements in working capital
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (62,04,44,913) (35,17,68,212)
(Increase)/decrease in other non-current assets (24.81,45,187) -
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets 11,718 (32,30,970)
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets 5,44 52 656 (66,52,92,35
(Increase)/decrease in other non-current financial assets (15,16,000) (5,29,00
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 41,89,18,701 43,85,65 531
Increase/(decrease) in other financial liability 33,80,502 (4,38,88
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities 26,70,42,630 (1,74,83
Increase/(decrease) in non-current provisions 12,15,322 2,24,37
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 3,95,02,788 7,47 664
Cash generated from operations 1,01,81,23,682 (47,68,07,006
Income taxes paid (1,27,84,45,074) (21,44 404

Net Cash Flow generated from Operating Activities (26,03,21,392) (47,89,51 .410I
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received 8,45,58,251 2,98,85.835
Proceeds from sale of tangible asset - 63,74,276
Payment for Intangible assets as per BTA agreement (7.00,000) -
Purchase consideration paid for Acquisition of MAB business (Refer note 32) - (12,50,00,00,000
Payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment (89,80,08,066) -
Net Caah generated from / (used in) Investing Activities (81,41,49,815) (12,46,37,29,889)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of share capital - 15,55,10,03,889
Dividends paid on equity shares incl Tax thereon - (12,03,576)
Net Cash generated from / (used in) Financing Activities - 16,54,98,00,313
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash equivalents (A+ B+C) ‘1,0?.44.71 .20?! =_1‘Mi I

Cash and Cash equivalents at beginning of the year (Refer note 7 & 8)
Cash and Cash equivalents at end of the year (Refer note 7 & 8)

Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash equivalents

Notes farm an integral 'part of these financial statements

This is the cash flow statement referred to in our report of even date
ForKPMR&CO

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 104497W

2,60,75,28,135
1,53,30,56,928

4,09,120
2,60,75,28,135

(1,07,44,71,207)

2,60,71,19,014

For SBI Payment Services Private Li

)

q m Nara Bo umil Vikamsey
¥ D & CEOQ irector
Safideep P. Rajgor 2168 DIN: 08323257

Partner
Membership No: 122739

&

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: 08 May 2020

Place: Mumbai
Date: 08 May 2020




Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2020

(a) Equltyi share capital

{Amount in Rs.)
As at Changes in equity As at Changes in equity As at
1st April 2018 share capital during 31st March 2019 |share capital during the|  31st March 2020
| the year year
2,00,00,000 4,08,10,820 6,08,10,820 - 6,08,10,820
(b) Other equity
| {Amount in Rs.)
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Items of Other Total Other Equity
Comprehensive
Income
Retained earning Security Premium Capital reserve Remeasurement of
net defined benefit
plan
Balance as at 1st April, 2018 1,80,32,473 - - - 1,80,32,473
Profit / (I0ss) for the year (9.39,68,169) . 4 5 (9,39,68,169)|"
Excess sale consideration paid to SB1 on {11,39,34,58 518) (11,38,34 58,518)
Business transfer arrangement ( Refer
Note no, 32)
Issue of share capital - Hitachi Payment 15,51,01,83,069 15,51,01,93,069
Services Private Limited (Refer note 33)
Interim dividend paid (10,00,000) {10,00,000)
Tax on dividends distributed during the year, (2,03,576) (2,03,576)
|
Remeasurement gains/(loss) on defined 18,684 18,684
benefit pljan
Effect of lax on remeasurement (6,528) (6,528)
gains/(logs) on defined benefit plan
Balance .h‘ at 31st March 2019 {7,71,39,272 15,51,01,83,069 (11,39,34,58,516) 12,156 4,03,96,07,437
Profit / (loss) for the year 48,67,17,899 « £ 48,67,17.899
Remeasurement gains/(loss) on defined (1,37,681) (1,37.681
benefit plan
Effect of tax on remeasurement - - - 4
gains/(loss) on defined benefit plan
Balance 4s at 31st March 2020 40,95,78,627 15,51,01,93,060 |  (11,39,34,58,516) (1,25,525) 4,52,61,87,655
As per our audit report of even date
ForKkPMR&CO For SBI Payment Services Private Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No, 104497W
g (“W & -
Sdndeep P. Rajgor m Narayana Sumil Vikamsgy
Partner D & CEO Director
Membership No: 122739 ¢ IN: : 08323257 .
—
nha Ekta Dhruva

Place: Mumbai
Date: 08 May 2020

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: 08 May 2020

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer




SBI Payment Services Private Limited
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

1. Corporate Information:
SBI Payment Sarviges Pvt Ltd ('the Company') is a private limited company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act
applicable in India. The Company was incorporated on February 12, 2010 and has registered office at 12th Floor, State Bank Bhavan, Madan Cama Road,
Nariman Point, Mumbai
SBI Payment Services Private Limited (a subsidiary of State Bank of India (SBI)) provides services on key activities relating to Merchant Acqguiring Business
(MAB) viz. sourcing, merchant relationship, support services for complaints management etc. for SBI, the largest commercial Bank in India
Merchant Acquiring!Business (MAB) refers to the mechanism of facilitating merchant payment for goods and services through the medium of a card ang App

Bharat QR (Scan & Pay) and BHIM-Aadhaar-SBI {Touch & Pay).

The Company has its foot prints across India and is connecting with the large number of merchants through a team of more than 1400 employees (on rolls &
contract) comprising Area Sales Managers / Sales Managers, Senior Sales Assistants, Sales Assistants, Tele callers.

2. Significant Accounting Policies :

SBI Payment Services Private Limited (SBIPSPL) a wholly owned subsidiary of State Bank of India (upto and including 19.01.2019) provides services o key

activities relating to Merchant Acquiring Business (MAB) viz. sourcing, merchant relationship, support services for complaints management etc. for SBI, the
largest commercial Bank in India.

Post the acquisition of the MAB vertical of the SBI dated 29th September 2018 for a consideration, SBIPSPL has issued shares to the extent of 26% on 19th

January 2019 to Hitachi Payment Services Pvt Ltd, a company who provides technological and other related services in connection with merchant acquiring
business.

2.1 Statement of compliance
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS") notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time). The Result has been reviewed by the audit committee & Approved by the board of di at
the meeting held on 8th May, 2020
For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with the accounting standards
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 201 3, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP). These financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 are the first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. The date of transition to Ind AS is April 1,
2018.
The Company has adopted all issued Ind AS standards, as applicable, and the adoption was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101. The transition was
carried out from the Indian GAAP which was the previous GAAP. An explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has affected the reported financial position land
financial performance of the Company is provided in Note 28. This note includes reconciliations of equity and total comprehensive income for comparative years
under Indian GAAP to those reported for those years under Ind AS.

Refer Note 28 for the details of first-time adoption exemptions availed by the Company.

2.2 Basis of preparation and presentation
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments and long term employee benefits that| are
measured at fair valu@a at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's operating cycle and other criteria set out in Ind AS-1 'Presentation
of Financial Statemenits' and Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.
The Financial Statements comprising Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Change in Equity, Cash Flow Statements together with| the
Notes for the year ended March 31, 2020 have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by|the
Company.

Use of Estimates and Judgements
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. T
estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. The applicatio
accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in these fina
statements have been disclosed in under relevant accounting policies. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ ff
those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates, Chan
in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to
financial statements

Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19 (COVID-19):
The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-18 on the carrying amounts of receivables and unbilled
revenues . In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company,
as at the date of approval of these financial statements has used internal and external sources of information. Based on current estimates, the Company expects
the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered. The impact of COVID-19 on the Company's financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the
date of approval of these financial statement.

VILE PARLE (EAST)
MUMBALINS




2.3 Non-Current assets held for sale
Company has not classified any assets as assets held for sale.

2.4 Revenue recognition

Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers' The Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 issued by the Mini of
Corporate Affairs (MCA) notified Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” related to revenue recognition which replaces all existing revenue
recognition standards and provide a single, comprehensive model for all contracts with customers. The revised standard contains principles to determine the
measurement of revenue and timing of when it is recognised. Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Col pany

and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The amount recognised has
revenue net of trade discount and Goods and service tax,

(a) Income from services
(i) Revenue is measured on the basis of consideration received or receivable by the Company for the services provided towards Merchant Acquiring Business

(MAB), excluding discounts, GST and other applicable taxes and are recognised upon the performance of services. The Company collects taxes on behalf of the
government and therefore it is not an ecanomic benefit flowing to the Company. Hence it is excluded from revenue.

(il) The revenue from deployment of POS is recognized either over the period during which the service is rendered or on the basis of the number of transactions
processed during the period in accordance with the rates and conditions specified in the agreements. Based on the contract terms, the merchant makes payment
to the Company for MDR, Monthly rental and Commitment charges and the same is treated as revenue from operations.

(i) Income received but not accrued on account of maintenance deployment contracts are recognised as deferred revenue and included in liabilities untillsuch
time the revenue recognition criteria are met.

(iv) Income accrued but not billed represents revenue recognised on work performed but billed in the subsequent period, in accordance with the terms of the
contract.

(v) Revenue of the Company comprises of providing services for Merchant Acquiring under the Merchant Acquiring Business Vertical of SBI till 29 September
2018. Services rendered are recognized on fully loaded costs plus mark up on such costs.

(vi) Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

b) Interest income

Income from interest is being accounted for on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable rate of interest. Interest
income is included under the head "other income" in the statement of profit and loss.

c) Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive dividend is established by the reporting date.

2.5 Foreign Currencies
The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees which represents the currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates.

Transactions in currencies other than the Company's functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rate prevailing on the

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on long term foreign currency monetary items in so far as it relates to the acquisition of depreciable capital assets are added to the
cost of such assets.

2.6 Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

2.6.1 Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax' as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss
because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's current tax is
calculated using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

2.6.2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Financial Statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those dedudtible
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the
end of the reporting period, to recover or settie the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which is likely to give future economic benefits in the

form of availability of set off against future income tax ligh Agcordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset be




2.6.3 Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax expense is recognised in the Statement of Profit and L i
” + I i h : i
| e . g g 055, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehe

; : nsive
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost, less depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of property, plant and equipment includes directly
attributable incremental costs incurred in their acquisition and installation,
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate assel, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated wlt‘h‘the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted
for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incirred

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset (after its use) is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition rt;:}:teria
for a provision are met.

Expenditure incurred on property, plant and equipment not ready for their intended use is disclosed as capital work-in-progress.

Prgperty, plant and equipment are eliminated from the financial statement, either on disposal or when retired from active use. Losses arising in the case of
retirement of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the year of occurence.

Depreciation on property, plant & equipment is provided on a pro-rata basis the straight line method over the useful life of the assets as prescribed under
Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013; which also reflects the technical assessment of the usefule life made by the company.

Individual assets costing up to Rs. 0.05 lakhs are depreciated fully in the year of acquisition.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

2.8 Intangible assels

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Cost includes all direct costs relating to acquisition of Intangible assets and

borrowing cost relating to qualifying assets. Subsequently, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Software is stated at acquisition cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. They are being amortised over the estimated useful life of 3 to
5 years whichever is earlier.

When an intangible asset is disposed of, the gain or loss on disposal is determined as the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as other income or other expenses, as the case may be.

The amortisation petiod and method are reviewed at each balance sheet date. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from the preyious
estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly. If there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of economic benefit from the asset, the
method of amortisation is changed to reflect the changed pattern.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

2.9 Provisions , Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material

Contingent assets are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts, unless possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefit is remote.

2.10 Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss)are added to or deducted from the fair valye of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial as: or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of ﬁ:I:'al

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants af the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset
or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on
such a basis.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair

value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilitiggH@

. Level 3 inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (uno
When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market
of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value meas
value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.




2.11 Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual in i i i
| terest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilitie: ity i i
Company are recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. v < Gl i)

2.12 Financial assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of

change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the date of i i i
/ purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash |
balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage. i o R 8

In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalent includes cash in hand, cheques on hand, balances with banks in current accounts. bank overdraft payable
on demand and other short term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. '
(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

quan;ial gssets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method if these financial assets are held within a business whose
objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to lcash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
(iii) Financial assels at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Lhe Company has made an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of equity investments not|held
r trading.

(iv) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
_Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income on
initial recognition.

(v) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected gredit
losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company recognises lifetime expected losses for trade receivables that do not constitute a financing
transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to 12 month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to
lifetime expected losses, if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

(vi) Derecognition of financial assets
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable
is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.13 Financial liabilities

i) Financial guaranliee contracts
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a spegified
debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured
at the higher of:

a. the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109: and
b. the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 18

i) Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
iii) Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as cross currency swaps, interest rate swaps, etc. to manage its exposure to interest rate and ign
exchange risks, Although the company believes that these derivatives constitute hedges from an economic perspective, they may not qualify for hedge
accounting under Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments. Any derivative that is either not designated a hedge, or is so designated but is ineffective as per Ind AS 109,
is categorized as a financial asset or financial liability, at fair value through profit or loss. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value
on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value through profit or loss and the result in exchange gains
or losses are included in Exceptional items. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value
is negative. Assets/ liabilities in this category are presented as current assets/current liabilities if they are either held for trading or are expected to be realized
within 12 months after the balance sheet date.

2.14 Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the pefiod.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic eamings per
share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.15 Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferra;:sr
accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash

are segregated into operating, investing and financing activities.

2.16 Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication thal.ap asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment

b AN asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-

i ined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not gengrate

ey, the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
2% SaN

/

testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's re
generating unit's (CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The re
cash inflows that are |argely independent of those from other assets
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its /¢




2.17 Employee Benefits

Employee benefits are accrued in the period in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Company, as detailed below:
Short Term benefits

Short term employee benefits at the Balance Sheet date, including short term compensated absences, are recognized as an expense as per the Company's
scheme based on expected obligations on an undiscounted basis. '
Long term employee benefits

_The Company accounts for its liability towards long term compensated absences based on the actuarial valuation done as at the Balance Sheet date by an
independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
The Company has a long term incentive plan which is paid during year. The Company accounts for its liability as at the Balance sheet date basis the approyal by
the Compensation Committee.
Defined contribution plans

Retirement benefit in the form of prqw‘dpnt fund is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions to the provident fund are charged to the statement of profit
;aund loss for the year when the contributions to the respective fund are due. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident
nd.

Defined benefit plans

method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determin of
the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation ad its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation

The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the defined benefit obligation are based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit Eredit
is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Gratuity liability under the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 is a defined benefit obligation. The cost of providing benefits under this plan is determined on the basis
of actuarial valuation at each year-end. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in the period in which they occur as other comprehensive Income| The
Company's scheme is administered by the SBI Life Insurance Company Limited. The fair value of the plan assets is reduced from the gross obligation under the

defined benefit plan, to recognise the obligation on net basis. Past service costs, to the extent its benefits already vested, is recognised immediately in the
statement of profit and loss.

Liability for compensated absences is provided for on the basis of actuarial valuation at year end, made by an independent actuary as per Ind AS- 19 "Employee
Benefits"as specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Rule 7 of the Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended),

2.18 Lease classification
Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, |f the
use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses
whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers fattors
such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of the
underlying asset to Infosys's operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The lease tefm in
future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances. After considering current and future economic conditions,
the Company has cancluded that no changes are required to lease period relating to the existing lease contracts.

2.19 First-time adoption-mandatory exceptions, optional exemptions
2.19.1 Overall principle

The Company has prepared the opening balance sheet as per Ind AS as of April 1, 2018 (the transition date) by recognising all assets and liabilities whose
recognition is required by Ind AS, not recognising items of assets or liabilities which are not permitted by Ind AS, by reclassifying certain items from Previous
GAAP to Ind AS as required under the Ind AS, and applying Ind AS in the measurement of recognised assets and liabilities. However, this principle is subject to
applicable mandatory exception availed by the company as detailed below:
1) Security Deposits Receviable

2) Security Deposit Payable

3) Employee Benefits Payable

2.19.2 Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities |
The Company has applied the derecognition requirements of financial assets and financial liabilities prospectively for transactions occurring on or after April 1,
2018 (the transition date).

2.19.3 Classification of debt instruments i
The Company has determined the classification of debt instruments in terms of whether they meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria based on the
facts and circumstances that existed as of the transition date.

2.19.4 Impairment of financial assets

The Company has applied the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 retrospectively, however, as permitted by Ind AS 101, it has used reasonab!e aer
supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort to determine the credit risk at the date that financial instruments were initially reoog‘rn‘susd in
order to compare it with the credit risk at the transition date. Further, the Company has not undertaken an exhaustive search for information when determining, at
the date of transition to Ind ASs, whether there have been significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition, as permitted by Ind AS 101.

2.19.5 Deemed cost for PPE and intangible assets _ _ e
The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its Property, Piant and Equipment, and intangible assets recognised as of April 1, 2018
(transition date) measured as per the Previous GAAP and used that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

2.19.6 Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease
The Company has applied Appendix C of Ind AS 116 ‘Leases' for determinipg-whedh
facts and circumstances existing at that date

gr an arrangement contains a Lease at the transition date on the basis of
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SBI Payment Services Private Limited
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

3

Other Intangible Assets

Particulars

Software

Gross block :

As at 1st April 2018

Acquisitions through business combinations
Adjustments/Deletions

As at 31st March 2019

Addition
Adjustments/Deletions

7.00,000

As at 31st March 2020

7,00,000

Accumulated Amortisation:
As at 1st April 2018
Amortisation for the period
Deductions / Adjustments

As at 31st March 2019

Amortisation for the period
Deductions / Adjustments

48,389

As at 31st March 2020

48,389

Net book value
As at 31st March 2019
As at 31st March 2020

6,51,611




10

SBI Payment Services Private Limited
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Non Current - Other financial assets As at As at . A:J:t mBs)
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019 1st April 2018
Security deposit 20,56,000 5.40,000 =
20,56,000 5,40,000
[Amourt in Rs.
Deferred taxes As at As at . A: t = i
31st March 2020 _31st March 2019 1st April 2018
Deferred tax assets:
Provision for employee benefits 500412 82,513 .
Loss available for offsetting against future taxable income * 5,89,34 583 14,68,61,732 -
Deferred tax liability:
Remesurment profit/(Loss) on define benefit plan - 6,528
Timing difference on tangible and intangible assets depreciation and impairment 5,84 34 995 9,68,04,853 -
Net deferred tax assets 5|01!32!GS4 .

* In the current year, the Company had recogni

available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

d deferred tax assets to the extent of deferred tax liability considering lower probabil

_ ity of taxable profit in near future against
which unused tax losses can be utilised. In the previous year Company had recognised deferred tax assets to the extent it is probable that sufficient future taxable profit will be

Trade receivables

(Amount in Rs.
As at As at As
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019 1st April 2018
(a) Trade Receivables considered good - Secured - - .
(b) Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured 99,43,39,034 37,3894 121 2,21,25,909
(c) Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk " ® it
(d) Trade Receivables - credit impaired B & 5
Total 99,43,39,034 37,38,94,121 2,21,25,909
Less: Allowance for doubtful trade receivables % - i
Net trade receivables 99,43,39,034 37,38,94,121 2,21,25,909
Trade Receivable includes unbilled revenue of Rs. 946,529 504 (Previous Year Rs.271,000,000)
{Amount in Rs.)
Cash and cash equivalents As at As at As
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019 1st April 2018
Cash on hand 3375 - 4
- In eurrent accounts 5,58,79,401 8,61,82,075 409,121
- In deposit account (with maturity upto 3 months) 47393077 2,52,13,35060 -
10,32,75,853 2,60,75,17,135 4,09,121
(Amount in Rs.)
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents As at As at As
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019 1st April 2018
- In deposit account (with maturity more than 3 months and less than 12 months) 1.42,96,73 846 - -
- Others” 107,228 11,000 22,752
1,42i97!81 !075 11,000 22!752
* Earmarked for dividend, Rights issue , Private placement & Gratuity purpose.
(Amount in Rs.)
Other Financial Assets As at As at As al
31st March 2020 | 31stMarch 2019 1st April 2018
Accrued interest on fixed deposits 32,119,254 32,30,970 -
Total 32,19,254 32,30,970 -
(Amount in Rs.
Other Current Assets As at As at As aE
31st March 2020 | 31stMarch 2018 1st April 2018
Balance with Government authorities 37,09,52,257 42 57,685,020 3,00,000
Prepaid expenses 3,60,108 H -
Total 37,13,12,365 42,57,65,020 00,000
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SBI Payment Services Private Limited
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Share capital
Aatho {Armount in Rs.)
rized capital As at As at As at
31st March 2020 31st March 2018 1st April 2018

Equity share capital

100,000,000 Equity Shares (Previous year: 100,000,000) of Rs. 10 each 1,00,00,00,000 1,00,00,00,000 1,00,00,00,000
Total 1,00,00,00,000 1,00,00,00,000 1,00,00,00,000

Amount in Rs.
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital As at As at . Asmt l
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019 1st April 2018

Equity share capital

60,81,082 Equity Shares (Previous year: 60,81,082) of Rs. 10 each 6,08,10,820 6.08,10.820 2,00,00,000
Total 6,08,10,820 6,08,10,820 2,00,00,000
a) Reconciliation of Shares.

Parbculars As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019 As at 1st April 2018

No of Shares Amount No of Shares Amount No of Shares Amount

Equity share

Opening Balance 60,81,082 6,08,10,820 20,00,000 2,00,00,000 20,00,000 2,00,00,000
Issued During the year - - 40,81,082 4,08,10,820 - <
Closing Balance 60,81,082 6,08,10,820 60,81,082 6,08,10,820 20,00,000 Z,OQ,DO,GOD
b) Right, Prefe and attached to the shares

Equity Share

The Company has one class of equity share having par value of Rs. 10/- each. Each shareolders is eligible for one vote per share held and carry a right to dividend . The
dividend proposed by board of Directors is subject to approval of sharehoiders in ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of Interim Dividend. In the evenl of liquidation

of the company, the holder of equity share will be entitie to receive any of the remaining assets of the company.

¢) Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates

Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company, ultimate holding company and their subsidiaries/associates are as

below:
Particulars As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019 As at 1st April 2013
No of Shares Amount No of Shares* Amount No of Shares* Amount
State Bank of India 45,00,000 4,50,00,000 45,00.000 4,50,00,000 20,00,000 2,00,00,000
45,00,000 Equity shares (Mar 31, 2019: 45,00.000)
of #10 each fully paid
45,00,000 4,50,00,000 45,00,000 4,50,00,000 20,00,000 2,00,00,000
* Includes 20 number of equity shares held by SBI's Nominee Directors
d) Shares In the Company held by holding company and by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares.
(Equity Shares in nos. of Rs. 10 each)
As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019 As at 1st April 2013
Particulars No of Shares | % holding of No of Shares* % holding of No of Shares* | % holding of equity
uity shares equity shares shares
Fully paid Equity share
State Bank of India 45,00,000 74.00% 45,00,000 74.00% 20,00,000 100.00%
Hitachi payment Services Pvt Ltd 15,81,082 26.00% 15,81,082 26.00% - -
* Includes 20 number of equity shares held by SBI's Nominee Directors
(Amount in Rs.)
Other Equity As at As at
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019 1st April 2018
Securities premium
Balance at the beginning of the period 15,51,01,93,069 - -
Add : Additions made during the period - 15,51,01,93,069 -
15,51,01,93,069 15,51,01,93,069 -
Capital reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year (11,39,34,58,516)
Less: Excess sale consideration over 1s taken over (11,39,34,58,516)
Balance at the end of the year (11,39,34,58,516)| (11,39,34,58,516) -
Other comprehensive income
Remeasurement gains/(loss) on defined benefit plan 12,156 12,156
Add : Transferred from statement of profit and loss (1,37.681) - -
(1,25,525 12,158 -
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Balance at the beginning of the period (7,71,39,272) 1,80,32,473 70.,28,038
Add : Transferred from statement of profit and loss 48,67,17,899 (9,39,68,169) 1,10.04 435
Less : Dividend paid - (10.00,000) -
Less : Tax on dividends distributed during the year - (2.03,576) -
40,95,78,627 (7,71,38,272) 1 ,3:}.32,473
Total 4,52,61,87,655 4,03,96,07,437

1,80,32,473
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SBI Payment Services Private Limited
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Securities premium

The amounts received in excess of the par value of equity shares issued have been classified as securities premium. In accordance with the provisions of Section 52 of

the

Companies Act, 2013, the securities premium can only be utilised for the purpases of issuing bonus shares, repurchasing the Company's shares and offsetting direct issue costs

and discount allowed for the issue of shares.

Capital reserve
Capital reserve was created pursuant to an Business Combination under commen control (Refer note 32).

Retained earnings
Retained eamings represents Company's cumulative earnings/ losses.

(Amount in Rs.)
Non Current Provisions As at As at As

31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019 1st April 2018
Provision for gratuity 11,57 438 7.02,583
Provision for Compensated absences 9,66,161 2,05,604 !
T
otal 21,23,599 9,08,277 -

(Amount in Rs.)

Current financial liabilities - Trade payables As at As at As at
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019 1st April[2018

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - .
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,16,91,70,345 739251644 ST.‘H 967
Total 1'15591l7°|345 73,92,51,644 11,967

(Amount in Rs.)

As at As at As

The disclosure pursuant to the said Act is as under: 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019 18t A mj;ms
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of - - -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer under the MSMED Act along with the an is of the payment made - - -
The amount of interest due and payable for the year (where the principal has been paid but interest under the -
MSMED Act not paid);
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year; and - - =
The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding period, until such date when the - - -
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a
On basis of information and records available with the Company, the above disclosures are made in respect of - -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable in the succeeding years - - -

(Amountin Rs.)
Other financial liabilities As at As at As
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2018 1st April 2018
Employee related payables 4548174 11,67.672 18,086,559
Total 4548174 11,67,672
Other current liabilities As at As at
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
Statutory dues 25,47 43,206 446,220
Income Received in Advance 1.27,51,864 -
Total 28,74.95,070 i
Current Provision As at As at
J1st March 2020 | 31st March 2019 st April 2018
Provision for Gratuity 63.264 43,480
Provision for Compensated absences 1,28,526 1.600 -
Total 1,91,810 45,080 -
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Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

~ - {Amount in Rs,)

evenue from operations For the year ended 31st For the year ended
March 2020 31st March 2019

Revenue from sale of services 13,30,04,08,563 5,34,15,02,362

Disaggregation of Revenue
MDR Income 8.55,61.08,958 4,67,18,34,797
Rental Income from POS terminals 89,79,67,892 43,16,27,701
Compensation (SBI) 3,45,00,95,919 -
Commitment Charges 16,23,60,596 7,87,59,501
Commission on ETC Transactions 6,93,83,582 1,91,47,119
Incentives towards certification and rollout of PoS Terminal 5,16,27,966 -
Merchant Banking Fee Recd - 13,41,23,619
Yono Cash & Sale Transactions 2,3260,814 3
Other Miscellaneous Income 8.,96,02,836 60,09,624

Total 13,30,04,08,563 5,34,15/02,362

{Amﬂlﬂl;Lll'l Rs.)

Other income For the year ended 31st For the year ended
March 2020 31st March 2019
Interest income on Fixed Deposits 8,45,58,251 29895835
Interest on income Tax Refund 15,07,870 6,00,470
Provisions/liabilites No Longer Required 3,94,93,740 -
Profit on sale of fixed assets (net) - 63,74,276
Total 12,55,59,861 3,68,70,581

(Amountin Rs.)

Employee benefit expense

For the year ended 31st

For the year ended

March 2020 31st March 2019
Salaries, wages and bonus 7.28,22,157 2,51,93,633
Contribution to gratuity 8,70,819 7.64,747
Leave encashment 11,17 467 2,19,046
Contribution to provident and other defined contribution funds 25,13,353 11.07.,001
Staff welfare expenses 11,54,431 58,842
Total ?,84.78&:_27 2,73,43,269

(Amount in Rs,)

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

For the year ended 31st

For the year ended

March 2020 31st March 2019
Depreciation on Tangible Assets 69,13,59,648 28,61,62,276
Amortisation on Intangible Assets 48,389 -
Total 69,14,08,036 23,81.21275




22

SBI Payment Services Private Limited

Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

(Amount in Rs.
Other expenses For the year ended 31st | For the yo_a_r!;t_nded }
March 2020 31st March 2019
Operating expenses
Interchange Charges 8,83,64,28,051 3,67,05,52,522
Scheme fees 88,14,90,954 35,27,01,219
Terminal management & Repair charges 1,02,17,43,174 22,41,08,895
Transaction processing charges 26,04,93,964 39,6157.111
GPRS SIM charges 14,43,20,398 6,47,57,321
Consumables 12,72,06,366 4,85,14,800
Installation/deinstallation charges 1,62,33,320 1,76,06,258
Commission paid to DCC Transactions to TSP 32,34 481 3,81,10,631
Courier charges 1.39,06,227 2,4169,713
Helpdesk Charges 1,72,08,944 59/99,049
Shared service charges 39,69,52,778 -
Agregator processing fees 1,91,62,688 11,4254 264
Business Support Services 82,16,087 71,449,820
Other Direct Expenses 33,72,028 26.41,265
IOCL (MDR) Written off - 77.00,000
Rupay transaction charges - 161.10,723
Administrative and other expenses
Payments to auditors* 16,90,000 12,22,900
Bank charges 6,679 5,145
Travelling and Conveyance 30,93,401 6,01,027
Filing fees and digital expenses 63,100 9,070
Postage and courier expenses 10,651 8,871
Printing and Stationery expenses 3,87,764 2,05,998
Professional fee 2,01,95,208 31,892,306
Advertisement expenses 30,50,662 -
Business Promotion 40,48,055 -
Directors sitting fees 8,85,000 -
TSP Audit fees 4,20,000 -
Recruitment/Training charges - 4.07,132
Rent, rates and taxes 9,42,35,149 47.41,921
Contract Staff Salary 22,85,33,219 20,67,51,888
Communication expenses - 1,00,800
Business support expenses 1,12,50,000 -
Miscellenous expenses 13,86.522 11,98.956
Total 12,11,92,24,870 5,20,90,69,605
*Payment to Auditors
For the year ended 31st For the year ended
Partuculars March 2020 31st March 20;L
Statutory Audit 15,50,000 4,05,000
Tax Audit 1.00,000 35,000
Other Services 40,000 7,60,000
Reimbursement of Expenses - 22,900
16,90,000 12,22,900




SBI Payments Services Pvt Ltd
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020
23 Earnings per share
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Net profit for the year attributable to the equity shareholders 48,67,17,899 (8.39,68,169)
Basic EPS:
Weighted average number of shares outstanding (Nos.) of face value of
Rs.10 each 60,81,082 39,36,595
Basic EPS (for face value of Rs. 10 each) 80.04 (23.87)
Diluted EPS:
Weighted average number of shares outstanding (Nos.) of face value of
Rs. 10 each 60,81,082 39,386,595
Diluted EPS (for face value of Rs. 10 each) 80.04 (23.87)
24 Related parties

a) Names of related parties
Relationship Name
Holding company State Bank of India
Significant investor Hitachi Payment Services Private Limited
Key management personnel (KMP) Swaminathan Janakiraman Nominee Director

(Appointed w.e f. 25th July, 2018) (Chairman of the Board)

Mr.Shree Prakash Singh Nominee Director

Mr.Rajendra Deshpande Nominee Director

Mr. Navtej Singh Nominee Director

Mr. Sumil Chandrakant Vikamsey Nominee Director

Mr. Krishna Kumar Aravamudan Independent Director

Mr. Shankar Aggarwal Independent Director

Mr. Sethurathnam Ravi

(Appointed w.e.f. 14th October, 2019) Independent Director

Mr. Ram Narayana Boga MD & Chief Executive

Officer

Mr. Aditya Senegar

(upto 18th February 2020) Chief Financial Officer

?:Iaﬁ’“::’l‘:mry 2020) Chief Financial Officer

Mrs. Ekta Dhruva Company Secretary &

Compliance Officer
b) Transactions with related parties (Amount in Rs.)
As at As at at

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019 m-ﬁmas
Issue of shares to
Holding company
State Bank of India = 2,50,00,000 s
(25,00.000 shares issued at Rs.10 each fully paid up)
Significant investor
Hitachi Payment Services Private Limited = 15,52,60,03 889 :
( 15,81,082 shares issued at Rs.10 each fully paid up issued at premium
of Rs.9,809.86 per share)
Slump sale
Holding company
State Bank of India
Transfer of Assets - 33,4257, 21,077 -
Transfer of Liabilities e 3.71,75,95,222 I
Transfer of Tangible Assets - 139,84 15628 -
Payment of Purchase consideration - 12,50,00,00,000 -




Revenue from operations
Holding company

State Bank of India

MDR Income

Rental Income from POS terminals
Compensation (SBI)

Commitment Charges
Commission on ETC Transactions
Incentives towards certification and rollout of PoS Terminal
Merchant Banking Fee Recd

Yono Cash & Sale Transactions
Other Miscellaneous Income

State Bank of India
Accrued Revenue

MDR Income

Rental Income
Compensation ($BI)
Commitment Charges

Other Miscellaneous Income

Direct expenses

Holding company

State Bank of India

Interchange Charges

Transaction processing charges
Terminal management & Repair charges
Shared service charges

Commission paid to DCC Transactions to TSP
Consumables

Courier charges

GPRS SIM charges

Helpdesk Charges
Installation/deinstallation charges
Agregator processing fees

Rupay transaction charges

IOCL (MDR) Written off

Scheme fees

Business Support Services

Other Charges

Provisions for expense

State Bank of Indla

Interchange Charges

Shared service charges

Scheme fees

Salary Expenses (SBI Deputed Staff)

Direct expenses

Significant investor

Hitachi Payment Services Private Limited
Terminal management & Repair charges
Installation/deinstallation charges
Transaction processing charges

Business support charges

Courier charges

Purchase of Fixed Assets

Significant investor

Hitachi Payment Services Private Limited
Purchase of Adaptar (POS)

Provisions for expense

Significant investor

Hitachi Payment Services Private Limited
Professional Fees

Terminal management & Repair charges
Business Support Service

Courier Charges

Helpdesk charges

Roll out charges

Other expenses

Holding company

State Bank of India

Rates & Taxes

Salary Expenses (SBI Deputed Staff)
Printing and stationery

Remuneration paid to KMP
Director Sitting Fees
Salary,allowances, efc #

8,23,19,31,153
79,16,44,992
297,00,95919
12,63,60,596
6,93,83,582
4,84,50,000

2,32,60,814
8,40,24,727

32,41,77,805
10,63,22,900
48,00,00,000
3.,60,00,000
55,78,100

8,60,88,01,809
12,29,34 606
7.57,98,420
37,69,52,778
1,64,53,871
1,75,00,000
78,33,531
4,09,51,437
17,72,763
47,73,264
5,78,49,838

86,00,08,744
95,92 142
28,25123

25,06,95.433
2,00,00,000
8,16,90,939
15,00.000

47,45,49,745
1,40,03,143
54,168,738
75,00,000
49,85,909

40,90,710

47,14,185
23,04,98,286
37,650,000
83.85,074
1.58,91,241
2,04,21,527

9,42,35,148
1,89,71,048
59,824

8,85,000
10,75,000

4,50,48,26,543
35,46,27,701

4,27,59,501
191,47, 119

13,41,23.619

60,098,624

16,70,08,254
7,70,00,000

3,60,00,000

3,67,05,52,522
39,61.57,111
22,41,08,895
3,81,10,631
4,85,14,800
24169,713
6,47,57,321
69,99,049
1,76,06,258
11,42,54 264
1.61,10,726
77.00,000
29,27,01,219
71,49,820
26,41,265

6.00.00.000

50,25,304

55,604

# Does Not Include post -employment benefit based on acturial valuation as this is done for the company as a whole.




C) Balances with related parties

(Amount in Rs.)

As at As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019 01-4April-18
Balance due to (Payables)
Holding company
State Bank of India 65,42 22 466 42,30,85,201 -
Significant investor
Hitachi Payment Services Private Limited 27,89,46,128 - -
Balance due from (Receivables)
Holding company
State Bank of India 99.43,10,236 37,38,94,121 2,21,25,908




SBI Payment Services Private Limited
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

25 Employee benefit plans

Defined contribution plan
The Company's contributions paid or payable during the
period in which the employee renders the related service,

Defined benefit plans
Gratuity

the projected unit credit method.
As per actuarial vailuation report as at 31 March 2020 as under:
A. Mo t in Obligation (Amount in Rs.)
Gratuity (funded)
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 1 April 2018
Change in present value of obligations
Defined Benefit Obligation at the beginning of the year 7.46,063 4,99242 297,539
Current Service Cost 458,231 2,34 515 1,91.817
Interest cost 51,193 39,938 23,059
Past Service Cost = M i
Remeasurements - Acturial (gains)/ Losses 92.210 (27.833) (13.173)
Benefits Paid {1,26,975 - -
|Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the year 12,20,722 7,46,063 4,99,242
B. Change in Fair value of the planned assets (Amount in Rs.)
Gratuity funded)
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 1 April 2018
Change in Fair value of the planned assets
Fair Value of the planned assets at the beginning of the year 7.56,141 5,10,994 3.02,167
Interest Income 51,949 46,038 24173
Employer contribution - 2,05,693 1.85,000
Remeasurements - Return on assets (52,000) (6.584) -346
Benefits Paid (1.26,975) - -
|Defined Benefit OM on at the end of the year 6,29,115 7,56,141 5,10,994
C. Amounts for the year ended 31 March 2020 recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income:
Gratuity (funded)
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 1 April 2018
Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
Current service cost 4.58,231 2,34 515 1.91.817
Past service cost # 2 =
(Gain)/Loss on settlements %
Reimbursement service cost .- S 3
Total Service cost 4,58,231 2,34,515 1,91,817
Interest expense on CBO 51,193 39,940 23,058
|Interest Income on plan (51,948) (46,038) -24,173
Total Net Interest cost (756) (6,099) {1,114)
Defined Benefit cost included in P&L 4,57,475 2,28,417 1,90,703
Expenses Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
(Gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions 52,000 (27,633) 34,391
(Gain)floss from change in financial assumptions 80,660 - 46,564
(Gain)/loss from change in Experience adjustments 11,549 6,564 (94,128)
Return on plan assets - - 346
Amount Rocongnlsad in OCl outside P & L Alc 1,44,209 (21,049) {12,827)




D. Assumptions

The Principal actuarial assumptions used for estimating the Company's defined benefit obligations are set out below:

Particulars As “Gl“atultr flunded) As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019 1 April 2018
Mortality table 2012-14 2012-14 2012-14
Method Project unit credit Project unit credit Projedt unit credit

method method method

Retirement Age in years 60 60 60
Discount rate per anfium 6.78% 7.5% 8%
Salary Escalation Rate 4% 4% 5%
E. Maturity Profile of defined Benefit Obligation:
Year As at As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2018 1 April 2018
Year 1 63,284 43480 43,480
Year 2 80,905 56,055 56,055
Year 3 96,024 67,504 67,504
Year 4 1,02,234 75,869 75,869
Year § 1,17,360 75.030 75,030
Year 6 1,13,199 72,361 72,361
Year 7 1,09,196 69,793 69,793
Year 8 1,05,347 67,323 67,323
Year 9 1,01,641 64,946 64,946
Year 10 98,076 62,661 62,661

F. Maturity Profile of defined Benefit Obligation:

DiscountRate SalaryEscalationRateandWithdrawalRatearesignificantactuarialassumptions. ThechangeinthePresentValueofDefinedBenefitObligationforachangeof100BasisPaintsfrom

the assumed assumption is given below:
Summary of Financial & Demographic Assumptions

io DBO P tage Change
Under Base Scenaric 12,20,722 0.0%
Salary Escalation - Up by 1% 13,58,710 11.3%
Salary Escalation - Down by 1% 11,02,042 -8.7%
Withdrawal Rates - Up by 1% 12,33.659 1.1%
Withdrawal Rates - Down by 1% 12,03.838 -1.4%
Discount Rates - Up by 1% 11,111,112 -9.0%
Discount Rates - Down by 1% 13,49,856 10.6%
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26 Tax Expense

Particulars

Amount in Rs.)

For the year ended 31st  For the year ended 31 st

March 2020 March 2019
A Amount récognised in profit and loss
Current income tax: 2
Deferred tax charge/ (credit) 5,01,39,392 (5,01,39,392)
5,01,39,392 (5.01,39,392)
Total income tax expenses reported in statement of profit and loss 5,01,39,392 gslmlaslaaz;
—_—
B Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
March 2020 March 2019
Items that will be not be reclassified to profit and loss
Net Gain/(loss) on remeasurement of defined benefit plans
Before Tax 1,44 209 18,684
Tax (expense) benefit 6,528 (6,528)
Netof T
ax 1 !sninr 1 2I158
C  Reconciliation of Current Tax expenses:
Profit before tax 53,68,57,201 ([14,42,02,207)
Applicable Tax Rate 2517% 34.94%
Expected income tax expense at statutory tax rate 13,51,16,243 5,03,90,019
Tax effect of :
Non deductible expenses for tax purpose 1,048 (2,50,627)
Temporary differences in current year on which deferred tax is recognised - (5.01,39,392)

Tax effect of brought forward losses/unabsorbed depreciation of current year on which no deferred tax asset is

recognised
Net Effective income tax

(13,51,17,292)

D Components of deferred tax assets and (liabilities) recognised in the balance sheet, statement of profit and loss statement

and statement of other comprehensive income :

Particulars For the year ended 31st| For the year ended 31st
March 2020 March 2019
Deferred Tax Liability (5,94,34 995) (B,68,04,853)
Deferred Tax Assets 5,94, 34,995 18,68.44 245
[Net deferred tax assets/(liability) - 5,01,39,392
D For the year ended March 31,2020 Opening Recognised in profit Recognised in OCI Closing

and Loss
Property, Plant and Equipment (9,68,04,853) 3,73,69,858 - (5.94,34,995)
Retirement benefits 82,513 4,117,899 - 5,00,412
Brought forward losses 14,68.61,731 (8,78,27,148) - $,89,34 583
Total 5,01,39,392 (6,01,39,392) - -
For the year ended March 31,2019 Opening Recognised in profit Recognised in OCI Closing

and Loss
Property, Plant and Equipment - (9,68,04,853) - (9.68,04,853)
Retirement benefits - 82,513 - 82,513
Brought forward losses - 14,68,61,731 - 14,68,61,731
Total - 6,01,39,392 - §,01,39,392
For the year ended March 31,2018 Opening Recognised in profit Recognised in OCI Closing

and Loss
Property, Plant and Equipment - - - -
Retirement benefits - - - -
Brought forward losses - - = =
Total - - - =

Particulars For the year ended 31st| For the year ended 31st

March 2020 March 2019
Unused Tax losses including unabsorbed depreciation 4,8251,97,692 3,26,86,23,336
Total 4,82,61,97,692 3,26,86,23,336

1) Unabsorbed depreciation does not have any expiry period under the Income Ta Act 1961,

2) The tax benefits for the losses would expire if not utilised startin
3) No deferred tax benefit is recognised in absence of reasonaid &
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(a)

(b)

(c)

The Significant policies “*.mmmmmm.mmwmmmmumunma* g in respect of
8ach class of assets financial liabilities and Equity instrument are disclose in note 2(i) to the financial statement
Financial Assets and Lia)
TheCammvﬁmomedu!IanmbyCmgm as at 31st March, 2020 is as follows
{Amount in Rs.)
Sr. No Particulars st March 2020 31st March 2018 April 1,2018
Financlal assets measured at Amortised
A lamount
(i) [Trada receivables 99,43,39,034 37,38,94,121 2,21,25,909
(i) |Cash and cash equivalents 1,53,30,56,928 2,60,75,28,135 431873
(iv)  |Non-current financial assets - Other assets
20,56,000 5,40,000 -
(v)  |Cumrent financial assets - Other assets
32,109,254 32,30,870
Total financial assets 2,63,26,71,216 2,98,61,93,226 2,25,67,782
Financial  liabilities measured  at
B amortised cost
(i) Trade Payables 1,15,91,70,345 73,92,51,644 88,11,987
(i) [Currerit financial fiabiiities - Other liabilities
4548174 11,687,872 16,06,550
Total financial liabilities 1,16,37,18,519 74,04,18,318 1,04,18,526 |
Fair valuation techniques
The Company procedures to value fi muwhﬂ%uwhmummmmmam The fair values of the

0] mmmmummmwm_«rmm.c-mwmmam. Cmmm-%m.@mmma

(i) Long—mwiabhmaanﬂmuh%mbuﬁmwmwumltm,mmmmm

characturistics. Fair value of variab rate b ings approwi their camying values.
Financial Risk Management
mcmmsmmmummmmm trade and other payable. The main P fi ﬁnulﬁochwmmmmnmbrme@mnﬂ
operallons.ThsComponyhallradummrdvm.ammmwmwtaﬁudhcﬂyﬂmhmﬂms.

I Market Risk

cwnpﬁummtymofﬂlk:umncyrntcm.mmntmﬂumdomorpﬁuﬂm.Mummmmmmwm.meﬂu
affected by market risk include loans and b ngs, deposits, i 5 il |
mvmeormmushmm.mmmmmmnmw of changes in foreign ge rates. Inb 8t rate risk is the risk that the fair
vﬂmwﬁmuuﬁﬂmdaﬂnmumhm&wﬁmummmhmmmmTrlilbblmwlrnﬁmnwmuand
mmmwaheuuuam«mzozommmzms.

li Foreign exchange risk

mCmnyuoumtmrulany it int ionally and is not to foreign exchange risks.
lii Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of fi 1cial loss to the C. y if & cust or party o a fi | inst _....mwmhmnnmobﬁnmm.m
CorrpanyiomuumlnrywmtmmkWthlmuwmmu.dwmbmm t g trade ivabls
i} Trade Recelvables
The C. y extends credit to -hmmdw.m&mwnﬁdammm“mmmum.mm
m.mmtmmmmmmuwm d and rity dep from its which miligate the credit risk to an
extent. The Company I the aton of risk with respect 1o trade i and unbill revenue as low, as its customers belongs lo
several industries.
The ageing mmmmmmawbu rale is as below :
(Amount in Rs.
Particulars Total
Upto 8 months | More than & months |
|As at 315t March 2020
Secured - - =
|Unsecured 85,55,41,175 13,87.97 858 ©9,43,39,034
Total receivables 86,55,41,176 13,87,97,859 98,43,39,034
|Aliowance for doubtful receivables® - - -
Net Recelvables 855541175 13,87.67,858 99.43,39,034
Expected loss rate 0% 0%
As at 31st March 2019
Secured . . =
Unsecureq 34,23,10,923 3,15,83,198 37,38.94,121
Total recelvables 34,23,10,923 3,16,83,198 37,38,84,121
|Allowance for doubtiul receivables® - . .
Net Receivables 34,23,10,923 3,15,83,198 37,38,84,121
Expected loss rate 0% 0%
As at 31st March 2018
Secured - - -
|Unsecured 2,21,25,900 - 2,21,25,900
Total recelvables 2,21,26,900 - 2,21,26,900
e Yor doubtful s = . i
Net Receivables 2,21,26,900
Expected loss rate 0%




(ii)  Cashand cash equivalent and Bank deposits

and deposits are maintained, The bal and fixed deposits are } "'wmhbmkawmwhhmwmhnawﬂedmm
faciliies. Further the C pany does not ignifi mmmmm«wnmwvmmeﬂumm;.mmm“.
the Company is not p o exp d credit loss of cash and cash ival and bank dep

v Liquidity Risk :

qu;ldltyﬂukbdeﬂmdunuﬂummemmsMlnmbnbhwmlhormwitwﬂhwmonm.TheCompmyrdiuonmbtduphw
mmummwmmmmm.mumm, ides details

v g the ining ities of fi ial liabilities at
the reporting date based on the undiscountad payments.
Pariew (Amount in Rs.
rs Ltulhan‘lu 1to 5 year Above § years Total

As at 31st March 2020

Trade Payables 1,15,91,70,345 - - 1,15,91,70,345
Other Financial liabilities 4548174 . - 4548,174
As at 31st March 2019

Trade Payables 73,92,51,644 - - 73,82,51,844
Other Financial liabilities 1167672 - - 1167672
As at 31st March 2018

Trade Payables 88,111,987 - - 88,11,967
|©ther Financial liabiiities 16,06,559 - . 16,086,558
mmmmmmwmmmmuquﬂmmmmMmm
Particulars Less than 1 r 1to 5 year Abun!n_!n Total

As at J1st March 2020

Other financial assets 32,19,254 - - 32,198,254
Trade receivables 99,43,39,034 - - 99,43,39,034
Cash and cash equivalents 10,32,75,853 - - 10,32,75,853
As at 118t March 2019

Other financial assets 32,30,870 - - 32,30,870
Trade receivables 373884121 - - 37,38,94,121
Cash and cash equivalents 2,60,75,17,135 - - 2,60,7517,135

As at 31st March 2018

Other financial assets . . . L
Trade receivables 2,21,25,909 - - 2,21,25009
Cash and cash equivalents 408,121 - - 4,09121

(d} Capital managemant
meammmmmflwumnwm.mildmmum.msmmﬂwmmmmmhm
holders of the Company. The C ¥ 0 humlmummnmumwMMaummmmhmmmmwm
stakeholders.

The capital structure of the Company is based on the o s judg of its g mmwmm-msmuum-wmwuwmmm

hum,mdmmmﬂ:«tmnﬁdmfrumwnduphlmﬂn rpose of capital 0 is balow :

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31,2019 April 153013

Equity share capital 6,08,10,820 6,08,10,820 2,00,00,000

Other equity 4,52/61,87,655 4,03,96,07 437 1,80,32 473

[Total capital 4,58,69,98,476 4,10,04,18,257 3,80,32,473




28 Dtuhlununmhdhylnﬂns 101 -Hmmmumahammmmmm
Transition to Ind AS

(a) Basis of preparation

Tl'muarslm(:umpmy'sﬂruﬂmnﬁmnm ents prepared in ac uwhnlrnﬁs.Formspmuuupmlndmudngma ear ended 31 March 2018, the
Cmawmmhahm:&mmlinmmlmﬂmn 5 '

Awon:llngly.theCompsnym;mmmmmamwmmlmASWMMywmmMamhzozo, together with the
wmmﬂvepeﬂodduhaauamtorlhnmmmMuchzow,asﬂamibedhlhummaryof i ing policies. In preparing these financial
statements, the Comp y's opening balal MmmpﬂmdnaﬂAprl2015boir\gtheCmpcny'smoflrmemmtoIndAS.Thisr\oteuplaiutm
pfhdpaladjtmmmamwmcmhmhlmnwwmmmtﬂemhmm“m1ﬁpﬂ201aammﬁnmdal
m«muuuamwmmmmmmwmmas.

() Opt
Ind AS 101 Flm-ﬂmeadnpibnoflndhnhwnumwmmmmmmmmuonuhmlhemmapﬂmlimdmnInd
AS. The C has applied the foll g optional ptions:

i} Deemed cost of property, plant & equipment and Intangible assets
JndAs101Wnawmmmmmmmmmmvmwnummw.mmwasmhmnm

fe) M y E:

() Estimates

mm%P{ﬂrMu&mthmﬁum:),
Ind AS estimates as at 1 April 2018 are i with the esti a-mmmmmaduhmmmmmmmp.mmmmmamu
forfoﬂmﬁmnminmmmImmath&hunnmnh«mmmmmwms&aﬁ

(i) Classification and measurement of financlal assets
A permitted under IND AS 101.mCummhusdemmmedaamumofﬂnm:laiamubauduponmlmamdmlam!hmmwmmdua

of Transition,
mmmmmwmsmmmmwmmwmmmcmy
(d R cillation bet previous India GAAP and Ind AS
Reconciliation of Balance Sheat as per previous GAAP and that computed under IND AS as on 1st April 2018
(Amount in Rs.)
Reference Indian GAAP* ustments ind AS
ASSETS
[Nen-current assets
8} Property, plant and equipment - =
b} Intangible assets & x
¢) Financial assets
d) Deferred tax assets (Net) 2,62,14,076 - 2,62,14,076
&) Income Tax Assets (Net) - 5 =
(A __2,62,14,076 - 62,14,076
Cuirent assets
a) Financial assels 3 =
{) Trade receivables 2,21,25.909 2,21,25,900
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 4,098,121 - 4,09,121
(iii) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 22752 22,752
(iv) Other financial assets - 3 .
b) Other current assets 3,00,000 - 3,00,000
(B) 2,28,57,782 - :!zslsr!m
TOTAL (A+B) -&MI‘HQ - 99171!:“
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
a) Equity Share capital 2,00,00,000 - 2,00,00,000
b) Other equity 1,80,32 473 - 1,80,32,473
@) _3.80.32473 : 38032473
Current llabilities
a) Financial liabilities
{l) Trade payables 88,11,867 - 88,11,067
(i) Other financial liabilities 16,086,559 - 16,086,559
b} Other current liabilities 6,20,859 - 6,20,858
c) Provisions s = -
(B) 1,10,39,385 - 1,10,39,385
TOTAL (A+B) 4,90,71 . 4,90,71,858 |
"ThnprwiousIndanGMPﬂgmhavabaanmdaumadwwmnmlmASmmaﬁmmmmrw he purposes of this note.




Reconciliation of Balance Sheet as Pper previous GAAP and that computed under IND AS as on March 31,2019

{Amount in Rs,)
e Indi
ASsETs Referanc an GAAP* Adjustments Ind AS
Non-current assets
) Property, plant and equipment 1,11,22,53,362 . 1,11,22,53,352
b) Intangible assets (i) 10,78,68,11,418 (10,78,68,11,418) .
) Financial assets (i) 2 5,40,000 5,40,000
%) Deferred tax assats (Net) 0 26,23,70,251 (21,22,37,386) 5,01,32,884
#) Income Tax Assets (Net) . g 26,88,02 688 26,88,92 688
12,16,14,36,021 (10729616 117)[_1,43,18,18,904
Current assets 504
B) Financial assets - A
(}j Trade receivables 37,38,94,121 - 37,38,94,121
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 2,60,75,28,135 (11,000) 2,60,75,17,1385
(iil) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - 11,000 11,000
(iv) Other financial assats (i) 37,70,970 (5,40,000) 32,30,970
b} Other current assets 68,88 42 803 27,30,77,783 42 57,685,020
(B) S!G&&“IUH 27,36,17,783 3,41,04,18,246
TOTAL (A +B) 15,84,54,71,060
—
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
a) Equity Share capital 6,08,10,820
&) Other equity (i 15,03 86,56 242
(4) 16,09,84,67,062 0
Liabilities Lo
Non-current liabilities
a) Provisions (i) 9,08.277 9,08,277
(B) - 9,08,277 9,08,277
Current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables 73.82,51,644 - 73,92,51,644
(il) Other financial liabilities (iv) - 11,67 672 11,67,672
b} Provisions (i 51,38 452 (50,93,372) 45,080
©) Other current liabilities (hv) 18,13,802 11,67 672 4,486,220
(C) 74,60,03,988 50,93,372] r4!usl1n!sts
TOTAL (A+B+C) 1!,“,54,71,050 11,00,32,33,800' 4,84,22 37,160
* The previous Indian GAAP figures have been recl 1o 10 Ind AS pr quirements for the purposes of this note.
R iliation of Stat ofpmmandlmuwpmlouwmdltuteompmdundorwnﬁslwtmmundadhltlﬁmhzuii
(Amount In Rs.)
Reference Indian GAAP Adjustments ind AS |
Revenue from operations (net) 5,34,15,02,382 - 5,34,15,02,362
Other income 3,68,70,581 3,68,70,581
Total revenue 5,37,83,72,943 - 6,37,83,72,843
Employee Benefit Expenses v) 2,73,24 585 18,684 2,73,43,260
Depreciation and Amortization expense (i 89,28,09,374 (60,66,47 088) 28,61,62,276
Other expenses 5,20,90,69,605 - 5,20,90,60,605
| 8,12,92,03,564 | 66,28,414 5,52,26,75,149
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (75,08,30,621) 60,66,28,414 (14,42,02,206)
Tax expense:
(@) Current tax (94,648) = (94 .648)
(b) Deferred tax 0] (26,23,70,252) 21,22,30,860 (5,01,39,382)
(Loss) forthe year (BT s aserse 35,88,168
Other comprehensive income
(i) Other Comprehensive income not 1o be classified profit {v) s 18,684 18,884
and Loss
Remesurment profit/(Loss) on define benafit plan
(i) Income Tax Effect v) 528 ___ (8528)
Total other comprehensive Income/(loss) for the year 12,166 12,156
Total comprehensive Incomel(loss) for the year 48,83,65,723! 38,44,09,710 _mm
Impact of Ind AS adoption on stat of cash flows for the year ended 31st March 2018
(Amount in Rs.)
Particulars Refarence Previous GAAP _Adjustments Ind AS
Net cash flow from operaling activities (15,71,81,431) (32,17,69,980) (47,89,51,410)
Net cash flow (used in) investing activities (12,78,54 98,869) 32,17 69,980 (12,48,37,29,889)
Net cash flow (used in) financing activities 15,54,08,00,313 3 15,54,96,00,313 |
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash equivalents /‘ M = 2,60,71,19,014 . 2,60,71,19,014
/ R AN




(e)

U]

0
(i)
(iv)
(v)

Reconciliation of total as at March 31,2019 and April 1,2018

Particulars Reference 31-Mar.19

Total equity (shareholders fund) as per previous GAAP 15,09,94,67,062

Adjustments

Intangible assets (i) (11,39,34,58,516)

Depreciation on above Intangible assets 0] 60,66,47 008

Deferred Tax on de-recognition of Intangible assets and Tax lossas (i) (21,22,37,388)

Total Adjustments (10,99,80,48,806)

Total Equity as per IND AS 4.1§E13;m

Reconcillation of Total cmmm Income for the year ended March 31,2018

Particulars Reference

Profit after Tax as per previous GAAP

Adjustments

Depreciation on above Intangible assets M

Deferred Tax on de-recognition of Intangible assets and Tax losses (i) (21,22,37,388)
R t of defined benefit plan ) 18,684
Total Adjustments

Total comprehensive Income as per IND AS

Fi to the illation of Bal Sheet as at 1st April 2018 and 31st March 2019 and Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31st
March 2019;

Intangible Assets, Capital Reserve and Deferred Tax assets :

mcmwmummmmmmumsmmsmmn.zma. MNWWP.MCWhﬂ:mnmmnmd
Rs. 1,39,84,15628 intangible of Rs, 11,39,34,58,516 including goodwill of Rs.7,37,40,58,516. However as per Appendix C Para 8 of Ind AS 103" Business
Combinations”, mmwmmmwmmmmwmummmmm podiing of interests method.
Further as per Para 8(ii) of Appendix C of Ind AS 103, maqulmmummmmﬂaufa#vm. or recognise any new assets or liabiiities. Therefore, SBI
Brands, Distribution Network and Goodwil aggregrating lo Rs. 11,39,34,58,516 are not recognised as Intangible Assets and transferred to Capital Reserve as per
m12ﬁAmClmkaO&5hmMnimnnﬁhsznﬂbom gnized , the depreciation th ofRa.BD.BGAIOO&hubunravmd. Further, the
deferred tax impact have been considered and accordingly Rs 21 ,22,37,388 has been de-recognised.

Under Ind AS, Security deposit are classified MMWIMMFWAW.

Pmmmmmymmwmmmmmmuwmwm
Emummmmmmmmmmmmsﬁmlmmmm.

g ho[hvu--;_‘ 1sive | . This difference has ragulte
dussmlmumhﬂﬁemhoqmwmmpm D K o —dgferred tax impact of Rs.6,528 has been considered thereon.
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Cancallable operating lease
Particulars For the year ended | Forthe year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Payable not later than 1 year 33,60,000 42,000
Payable later than 1 year not later than five years 16,43,000 -
Payabie later than five years - =
Total

50,63 — 42,000

Operating Lease Rentals charged off to the statement of profit and loss
The Company has entered into cancellable leasing arrangement for the
before the said period by giving one month notice by either parties,

Segment reporting

The Company operates in a single business segment . There are no other separate reportable segments. Hence, no disclos

required to be given under the Indian Accounting Standard 108 (Ind AS 108) “Segment Reporting”.

Contingent Liabilities and Provisions
Contingent liabilities are disclosed after a careful evaluation of facts and

Other commitments
The Company has no capital commitment as at March 31,2020 (March 31,2019 : Nil, April 1,2018: Nil)

Business Combination

The Company, a wholly owned subsidiary of SBI (till January 19,2019), had entered into Business
Operation Agreement and Name, Logos, and Trademark license
Company acquired the Merchant Acquiring Business (MAB) i
sale basis, for a cash consideration of Rs 1250,00,00,000.

flats for a period of 24 months which is cancellable even

ures related to segments is

Transfer Agreement (BTA), BIN Sponsorship and
agreement with SBI dated Seplember 29,2018, Pursuant to these agreements the

Amount in Rs

Details of Assets & Liabilities acquired on Transfer of MAB business is as below
Particulars
Fixed Assets

1,39,84,15,629

Other Assets 3,42,57,21,077
Other Liabilities (3.71,75,95,222)
Total net value of identifiable assets acquired 1,10,65,41,484
Less : Purchase consideration paid 12,50,00,00,000
Excess of Purchase consideration over net value of identifiable assets acquired (11,39,34,58 516
The details of excess of Purchase consideration, over net value of identifiable assets acquired, were attribuable towards assumption of unidentifiable
Intangible assets which were not recognised in the books of SBI is as below:

Particulars Amount in Rs
Distribution Network 3,72,72,00,000
SBI Brands 29,22,00,000
Goodwill 7,37,40,58,516
Total of Intangible assets not recongised in SBI books 11,39,34,58,516

As per Appendix C Para 8 of Ind As 103 "Business Combination”,
accounted for using pooling rate of interest method. Further as per Para 9 (i) of Appendix C of Ind As 103,
recogniseé any assets or liabilities. Therefore SBI Brands, Distributi
intangible assets and transfer to Capital Reserve as per para 12 of Appendix C Ind As 103

business combination involving entities or business under common control shall be

no adjustment are made to reflect fair value, or

Network and Goodwill aggregrating to Rs.11,39,34,58,516 are not recognised as




33 On 6th August 2018, the Company issued 25,00,000 shares of Rs 10 each, to SBI. Sub

sequent to the acquisition of the MAB vertical of the SBI, on

January 19,2019, the Company entered into Joint venture agreement with Hitachi Payment Services Pvt Ltd, a company who provides technological and
other related services in connection with merchant acquiring business, Pursuant to this agreement, the Company had issued 15,81,082 shares of Rs 10
each al a premium of Rs.9808.96 per share resulting into divestment of stake to the extent of 26%,

malnutrition, promoting education, at and culture, healthcare, destitute care and rehabiitation
development projects. A CSR committee has been formed by the company as per the Act.

a) Gross amount required to be spent
b) Amount spent during the year is Nil,
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by the company during the year is Nil ( March 31,2019 : Nif)
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